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DDAS & KAMALUDDIN
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF PUBLISHING SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U22222WB2004PTC099639

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of PUBLISHING
SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2018, the
Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the statement of cash
flows and the statement of changes of equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act"} with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts}) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements

based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

‘ We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
- 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS

financial statements are free fromrmaterial misstatement.
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CONTINUATION SHEET

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
tn making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to
the Company's preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of
such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India :

i) of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31" March, 2018,

ii} and its loss including other comprehensive income its cash flows and statement of
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure-A" a
statermnent on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent

applicable.
As required by Section 143 (3} of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income the statement of cash flows and statement of changes in equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

DDAS & KAMALUDDIN
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the IND AS
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

{(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31* March,
2018 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified
as on 31 March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the

Act,

(i  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in “Annexure-B8” and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  The Company has not provided requisite information in the Standalone Financial
Statements as to holding as well as dealing in Specified Bank Notes as defined in the
Notification S.0 3407(E) dated 8™ November 2016 of the Ministry of Finance, since
this is not required for the financial statement concerned the period under audit.

For D DAS & KAMALUDDIN
ICAl Firm Registration No. 324916E
Chartered Accountants

CJL’ o
Place : Kolkata é
f

{2 KOLKATA 12

Date : 17" day of May’2018 937 ,_,{;;5-’;’{ {SK Kamaluddin)
%"-"‘CW}/ Partner

Membership No. 058107

w
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THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT - 315" MARCH, 2018

ANNEXURE- A

PUBLISHING SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U22222WB2004PTC099639

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company
on the standalone Ind AS financial Statements for the year ended 31* March,2018 we report
that :
I. Inrespectof its fixed assets:
a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of the fixed assets.

b. The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, and
information provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable
intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of
immovable properties, as disclosed in the Standalone financial statements, are held in
the name of the Company.

11. In respect of its inventory:
As explained to us, the inventories other than material lying with were physically
verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the Management were
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its

business.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has maintained proper records of its inventories and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

1. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or
other parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies

Act, 2013.

1V.  The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the
parties covered under Section 185 of the Act. The Company has complied with the
provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made or loans or
guarantee or security provided to the parties covered under section 186.

DDAS & KAMALUDDIN
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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V. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
- accepted any deposit during the year and accordingly the question of complying with
section 73 and 76 of the Companies Act 2013 does not arise.

V1. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
- under Section 148(1) of the Act for any of the products manufactured by the

Company.

VII  .According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books
of accounts in respects of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income
Tax, Value Added Tax, Duty of Customs, Service Tax, GST, Cess and other material
statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the company with the
appropriate authorities, As explained to us, the company did not have any dues on
account of employees’ State Insurance.

No undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Income Tax, VAT,
Service Tax, GST, Cess and other material Statutory Dues were in arrears as at
31.03.2018 for a period of more than 6 months from the date they become payable.

VIII.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution, bank during the year.

[X.  The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer (including debt
instruments) and term loans during the year, Accordingly, the provision of clause
3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

X. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company and no significant fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

XI.  According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records, the Company has paid /provided for managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provistons
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

XII. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

XIII. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examinations of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable. The details of
such related party transactions have been disclesed in the Financial Statements as
required under Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related Party Disclosures specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014,

DDAS & KAMALUDDIN
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According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records, the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records, the Company has not entered into non-cash transaction
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

For D DAS & KAMALUDDIN
ICAI Firm Registration No. 324916E

Place : Kolkata Vs e
LN e ey T
Date : 17" day of May’2018 #7755 (SK Kamaluddin)

Partner
Membership No. 058107

DDAS & KAMALUDDIN
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THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT — 31°" MARCH, 2018

ANNEXURE-B

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINALCIAL CONTORLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF
SECTION 143 OF THE ACT

We have audited the internal financial control over financial reporting of PUBLISHING SERVICES

PRIVATE LIMITED (“The Company”} as of 31* March, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTORLS

The company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
contrels based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the
company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of internal financial Controls over financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India [“ICAI” ]. These responsibilities include the design.
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business including adherence
to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors! the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the companies Act 2013 ['the

Act”].
AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion an the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. we conducted over all audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting [the “Guidance
Note”] and the standards on Auditing, issued by {CAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143[10] of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal Financial Controls,
both issued by the ICAl. those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internat financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting. assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of

internal controls based on the assessed risk.

DDAS & KAMALUDDIN
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The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company’s internal financiai controls over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purpose in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting includes

those policies and procedures that :-
[1] pertain to the maintenance of record that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the company;

[2] provide reasonable assurance that transaction are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3] provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on

the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INFTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REORTING
Because of the inherent iimitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION
In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate interna! financial

reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31" March 2018, based on the internal controls over financial reporting
criteria established by the company considering the essential compenents of internal controls
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over financial reporting

issued by ICAL

For D DAS & KAMALUDDIN
ICAI Firm Registration No. 324916E
Chartered Accountants

_“1_;‘-“(\‘@;;‘#"“___#_“:;\,_'”"_—"(&

Place : Kolkata

(SK Kamaluddin)
Partner
Membership No. 058107

Date : 17" day of May’2018
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_ Publishing Services Pvt. Ltd.
73 CIN: U22222WB2004PTC099639

Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2018
i (Amount in ¥)

Notes As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

s, Particulars

7 Assels

£~ Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 7,35,565 8,55,441 11,46,773
7% Intangible assets 4 23,26,695 23,28,877 33,58,516
Financial assets
£ . Loans 5B 1,29.270 81,814 1,95,808
- Other financial assets 5D 92,793 1,15,254 1,67,647
% Other noa-current assets 7 6,33,337 7,13,955 7.86,174
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 _(2,59,429) (3,10,466) {5,46,100)
" Total non-current assets 36,58,231 37,84,875 51,08,818
o Current assets
-, Inventories 6 - - -
" Financial assets
.+ = Trade receivables SA 1,15,493 91,425 5,357,250
- Loans 5B - 50,754 6,000
- Cash and cash equivalents 5C 19,58,740 20,39,984 24.,04.646
- Other financial assets 5D . - -
: Other current assets 7 3.49.,529 93,211 2,35,498
o Total current assets 24.,23,762 22,75,374 32,03,394
Total assets 60,81,993 60,60,248 83,12,212
. Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 9 5,00,000 5,00,000 5,00,000
- Other equity
- Retained earnings 10 16,30,126 23,46,588 8,77,779
.- Other reserves - - -
Total equity 21,30,126 28.46,588 13,77,779
Curreut liabilities
" Financial liabilities
- Trade payables 1 20,57,347 15,26,357 53,72,332
"Provisions 12 1,29,800 - -
Other current liabilities 13 17.64,720 16,87,303 15.62,101
Total current liabilities 39,51,867 32,13,660 69,34,433
Total equity and liabilities 60,81,993 60,60,248 83,12,212
* Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
. As per our report of even date
- For DDAS & KAMALUDDIN For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

[CAI Fiem Registration No. 324916E Publishing Services Pvt. Ltd,

" Chartered Accountants

:’;—MW _ 3/" — T hu - A "
e Debabedcualy UL
{(SK Kamaluddin) Debabrata Maity Uttam Dufta
... Partner Director Director
DIN; 02597905 DIN: 02493312

Membership No.: 058107

Place : Kolkata
- Date : 17th day of May2018



ﬁél’ublishing Services Pvt, Ltd.

CIN:

“"Gtatement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March, 2018

U22222WB2004PTC099639

(Amount in ¥)

2,

For the period ended

For the period ended

I ticuls Not

' Particulars %% 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

1 Revenue from Qperations 14 1,53,70,079 2,05.81,034

“% 1 Other Income 15 15,521 29,868

o m Total Income {I+II} 1,53,85,600 2,0:6,10,902

V_ IV Expenses
Cost of raw material consumed 16 - 1,06,654
Publication expenses 17 Q1,980 1,42,038
Employee benefits expense 18 1,26,28,068 1,47,23,627
Depreciation and amortisation expense 19 12,78,267 16,01,215
Other expenses 20 21,13,026 21,23,822
Total expenses 1,61,11,341 1,86,97,356

¥V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (I-II) (7,25,741) 19,13,545

.. V1 Exceptional item - -

- “¥1i Profit/(loss) before tax {7,25,741) 19,13,545

. le[l Tax expense:

; Current tax - 3,35,261
MAT Credit - 1,38,256
Deferred tax (credit)/ charge (38,564) (1,73.847)
Total tax expenses (38.564) 2,99.670

IX Profit (Loss) for the period (6,87,177) 16,13,875
X Other Comprehensive Income
- [tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 21
Re-measurement gains/{losses) on defined benefit plans (41,759) (2,06,853)
Tax impact on re-measurement gain/(loss)on defined benefit plans 12,473 61,787
X1 Total Comprehensive Income for the period (V + VI}
’ {Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the
period) ~ {7,16,462) 14,68,809
‘X11 Earnings per equity share: 22
(1) Basic (137} 323
(2} Diluted (137) 323
2.1

summary of significant accounting policies

- The accompanying notes ate an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For DDAS & KAMALUDDIN
“{CAI Firm Registration No. 324916E

“hartered Accountants

‘SK Kamaluddin)
“Pariner
__Aembership No.: 058107

.

i

P

_“lace : Kolkata

“Date -

17th day of May'2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Publishing Services Pvt. Ltd.

Debabrata Maity

Director

DIN: 02597905

PrbabadiMoaly Ul 2

DIN: 02493312



£% Publishing Services Pvt. Ltd.
- CIN: U22222WB2004PTC099639
* 7 Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2018

5 Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
. A. Cash flow from Operating Activities:
Profit before Taxation {7,25,741) 19,13,545
L Adjustment for:
v Depreciation and amortisation expenses 12,78,267 16,01,215
Loss/(profit) on sale/disposal of Assets (net)
Adjustment for Rounded off (5)
73 Provisions for liabilities 1,29,800 -
Finance costs
7 Interest / Dividend Income
Income from financial assets at amortised cost - (17,285) (1,54,107)
3 Operation profit before Working Capital changes 6,605,041 33,60,649
3 Adjustment for:
Trade & other receivables {1,98,483) 1,86,231
! [nventories .
- Trade & other payables 6,08,407 (37,20,773)
Cash Generated from operations 10,74,965 (1,73,893)
Income Tax paid - (1,38,256)
Net cash flow from Operating Activities 10,74,965 (3,12,149)
’B. Cash flow from Investing Aetivities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment / Capital Work-in-Progress (11,56,209) (2,80,244)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - .
© Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures - -

Sale/(purchase) of Current/Non-Current Investments (net) - -
Redemption of Long Term Investments - .
Interest / dividend received - -
Net cash used in Investing Activities (11,56,209) (2,80,244)

. C. Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings - 227,730
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings - -
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash Credit facilities and other Short Term Borrowing - -
Advance received from Customer - .
Finance cost paid - .

Dividend paid - -
Dividend Tax paid - .
Net Cash flow from Financing Activities - 2,27,730
Net Increase / (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (81,244) (3,64,663)
Cash and Cash equivalents - Opening Balance 20,39,984 24,04,646
Cash and Cash equivalents - Closing Balance 19,58,740 20,39,984

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISES OF:
Balances with banks

- In current accounts 19,54,.312 20,31,578
- Empoyees Group Gratuity Fund A/c - 4,873
Cash in hand 4,428 3,533
19,58,740 20,39,984

' The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

" For D DAS & KAMALUDDIN . For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

. ICAI Firm Registration No. 324916E CRAMITN Publishing Services Pvt. Ltd.
Chartered Accountants / \{‘;,3_}/' \i\%\’a

- fgf Yo - R o '
«jﬁfﬂ;j(;/_:,____.ﬁp_g_g :;d!i KOLKATA )%j D;Dijgo A}LNJA m ,%’ W

-/ Sk. Kamaluddin "x\»f_%%\\_/ @g—- Debabrata Maity Uttam Dutta
Partner \\W Director Director

" Membership No.: 058107 DIN: 02597905 DIN: 02493312

._:Place : Kolkata
Date : | 7th day of May, 2013

T



£7} Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2018

#% Publishing Services Pvt. Ltd.

CIN: U22222WB2004PTC099639

£~ A. Equity share capital:

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up (Share of ¥ 100 each)

No. of shares Amount in ¥

At 1 April 2016 5,000 5,00,000
Issued during the year - -
At 31 March 2017 5,000 5,00,000
Issued during the year - .
At 31 March 2018 5,000 5,00,000

" ' B. Other equity

:Summary of significant accounting policies

Reserve & Surplus

Particulars Retained General Secu :.-ity Total

. premium

earnings reserve
account
As at Ist April 2016 8,77,779 - - 8,77,779
Profit for the year 16,13,875 - - 16,13,875
Other comprehensive income for the year (1,45,066) - - {1,45,066)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 14,68,809 - - 14,68,809
As at 31st March 2017 23.46,588 - - 23,46,588
Profit for the year (6,87,177) - - (6,87,177)
Other comprehensive income for the year (29,286) - - (29,286}
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (7,16,462) - - (7,16,462)
As at 31st March 2018 16,30,126 - . 16,30,126
2.1

As per our report of even date

(SK Kamaluddin)

For D DAS & KAMALUDDIN
TCAI Firm Registration No. 324916E
_Chartered Accountants

Partner

Membership No.: 058107 \f_gﬁg-a\i

‘Place : Kolkata

Date : I7th day of May'2018

T Dobabali Madly
‘Q\ — ’/,b@;

. The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Publishing Services Pvt. Ltd.

Debabrata Maity Uttam Dutta
Director Director
DIN: 02597905 DIN: 02493312
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Publishing Services Private Limited

CIN: U22222WB2004PTC099639

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Corporate information
Publishing Services Private Limited (the Company) is a private company domiciled in India and incorporated under

the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. These are standalone financial statements and, accordingly, these Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) financial statements incorporate amounts and disclosures related to the Company only,

The Company is primarily engaged in Composing services for Educational Books
Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation
The unconsolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting

Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company prepared its unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 (Indian GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 are
the first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer note 45 on how the Company adopted Ind AS.

The unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value.

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair vafue (refer accounting policy regarding financial

instruments).
ii) Equity settled emplayee share-based payment plan

The unconsolidated financial statements are presented in INR (Indian Rupees) and all values are rounded to the nearest
Rupee, except when otherwise indicated.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when:
o It is expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

o It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
o Tt is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.
Al other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

» It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

o |t is held primarily for the purpose of trading

s [t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

o There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classifted as non-current assets and liabilities,
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The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentational currency
The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally
the currency in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlernent or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
The Company has not entered into any foreign currency transaction during the year,

Fajr value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments and equity settled employee share based payment plan at fair
value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
» in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes inte account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole:
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« Level | — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

« Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
1s unobservable.

whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities,
such as valuation of unquoted investments and equity settled employee share based payment plan. Involvement of
external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company’s management. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Company’s management analyses the movements in the vajues of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Company’s management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company’s management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the
fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant

notes,
e Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (Note 44)

s Financial instruments {including those carried at amortised cost) (Note 44)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is received. Revenue is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding
taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has coneluded that it is the principal in aii of its
revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in ail the revenue arrangements, has pricing latitude, and is also

exposed to credit risks.

Sales tax/ Value added tax {VAT)/ Goods and services Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account,
Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it

is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.
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Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have

passed to the buyer. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of sales returns, turnover discounts and cash discounts.

The provision for anticipated returns is made primarily on the basis of historical return rates. The provision for
turnover discount and cash discount is made on estimated basis based on historical trends,

Sale of services
Service income is recognized on accrual basis as and when services are provided and invoices raised during the year.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate

applicable, For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and other interest-bearing financial assets, interest
income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR}. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. [nterest income is included in

other income in the statement of profit or loss.

The Company has recognised Interest income on security deposits by discounting the same at 12.50% effective
interest rate.

Inrcome taxes

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax

authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company
operates and generates taxable income,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions

where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss

s In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for ail deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except:

» When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

» In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment
Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), property, plant and equipment, except land and building acquired before

1 April 2016, were carried in the balance sheet at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all its item of property, plant and
equipment as recognised in its [ndian GAAP financial as deemed cost at the transition date, viz, 1* April 2016.

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and
barrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the profit or loss as incurred. The
present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use, is included in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Company has elected to apply Ind AS
accounting for business combinations prospectively from 1* April 2016, As such, Indian GAAP balances relating to
business combinations entered into before that date, have been carried forward with no adjustments. (please refer note

45)
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Depreciation
Till 31" March 2017, depreciation on property, plant and equipment was being provided on written down value
method. W.e.f. 1*" April 2017, depreciation is being provided on straight line method.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold improvements, have been provided on pro-rata
basis, on the straight line method, using rates determined based on management’s technical assessment of useful

economic lives of the asset.

Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used.

Category of assets Useful life as adopted by Useful life as per Schedule 11
management
Office Equipment 5 years 5 years
Furniture & fixture 10 years 10 years
Vehicle 10 years 8 years
Computer (except tablets*) 6 years 3 years

*Tablets are depreciated at an estimated useful life of 3 years.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over economic useful life or unexpired period of [ease whichever is less.
Assets costing ¥ 5,000 or less are depreciated entirely in the year of purchase.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain
items of plant and machinery, vehicles, computers and building over estimated useful lives which are different from
useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated
useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets
Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), intangible assets were carried in the balance sheet at cost, net of

accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The Company has elected to continue with the
carrying value for all its item of intangible assets as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial as deemed cost at the

transition date, viz, 1* April 2016.

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Company has elected to apply Ind AS
accounting for business combinations prospectively from 1* April 2016. As such, [ndian GAAP balances relating to
business combinations entered into before that date, including goodwill, have been carried forward with no

adjustments, (please refer note 45)

Recognition and niedsurement
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired

in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carricd at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally
generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when it is incurred. -
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Amortisation and useful lives
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite,

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, cither
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made
on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

Research and developtent costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as

an intangible asset when the company can demonstrate all the following:

s The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale. Its intention
to complete the asset.

o Its ability to use or sell the asset. How the asset will generate future economic benefits

o  The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset
s The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost medel is applied requiring the
asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment iosses. Amortization of the
asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized on a straight line basis
over the period of expected future benefit from the related project. Amortization is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortization method used Internally
generated or
acquired
Computer software Finite (5 years) Amortized on straight line | Acquired
basis over the period of useful
| lives
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Borrowing cosis
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Leases
The determtination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at

the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all

the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is ciassified as a finance lease. An operating lease is a
lease other than a finance lease.

The Company does not have lease arrangement with any party for its operation.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition is accounted for as folHows:

« Raw materiais: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

« Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on first in, first out basis.

« Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The Company is engaged in providing composing services for educational books hence there is non such amount of
inventory lying with it as on the year end.

Impairment of non—financial assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any

indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies 9t‘other available fair value indicators.

2 P el
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The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by
the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the
entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
tast impairment {oss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to
which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurenent
Al! financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value

through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
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Financial assets at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

» Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in
the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at F¥TOCT
A debt instruments is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

» The objective of the business mode! is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial

assets, and
+ The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI,

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income {(OCI}). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-
recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L,
Interest earned whilst holding FVTQOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity instruments at FYTOCI
All equity instruments in scope of ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for

trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies
are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the group may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The group makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the QClL. There is no recycling of the amounts from QCI to P&L, even on sale
of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L.

Financial assets at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet the criteria for

categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L.
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De-recognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s standalone balance sheet) when:

s The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred not retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership, When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required

1o repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and

recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

» Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and
bank balance

» Financial assets that are measured as at FYTOCI

s Contract assets and trade receivables under Ind-AS 18.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

] Trade receivables,

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there
is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider;
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s All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment extension, call and similar options) over
the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument.

o Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of
its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of
the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company has
estimated provision of 0.00% is required to be made on outstanding receivables at the reporting date:

Age braeket ] L

Credit Loss Rate r i

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance
sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:-

a) For financial assets measured as at amortised cost and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e.
as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount, Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment altowance

from the gross carrying amount.

b) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as
a liability.

¢) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment
allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment

amount’ in the OCIL.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment Joss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired {POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets
which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Finaneial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans

and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings including bank

overdrafis.

Subsequent measturement
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term, Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to

borrowings.

Financial guarantee conitracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to

reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109
and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Re-classification of Financial Assets
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For
financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model
for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant
to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs
when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations, [f the Company
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first
day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business modei. The Company does not restate
any previously recognised gains, losses {including impairment gains or losses) or interest.
Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial Habilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities si,rs‘}ftzj\tapc‘:qysly.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
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2.14 Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to
the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset
to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
¢ The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
s The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net Interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and

loss:

s Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

» Net interest expense or income.

Compensated absences
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee

benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date,

Provisions

General
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past

event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursernent is
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the staterment of profit or loss net of any

reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When d:scountmo is used, the increase in the provision due to the

passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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¢y 2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

PR

218

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in hand and short term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders of the
company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws
in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised

directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement
recognised directly in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying
amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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Property, plant and equipment

{Amount in X}

Particutars Fur'nilure & E‘IUiP'ﬂ"le‘nl & Computer - Electrical Total
Fixiures Facilities Hardware [nstallation
Gross block
Asat i April2016 5,79,209 1,62.002 3.98574 6,988 11,46,773
Additions 2,24,619 18,661 2,43,280
Defetions .
As at 31 March 2017 5,79,209 1,62,002 6,23,193 25,645 13,90,053
Additions 61,400 5,059 69,459
Deletions . -
As at 31 March 2018 6,40,609 1,62,002 6,31,252 25,649 14,59,512
Accumulated depreciation
Asat 1 April 2016 -
Charged during the p.oriod 1,58,811 71,171 3,01.645 2,985 534,612
Deletions -
Asat 3] March 2017 1,58,811 71,171 3,01,645 2,985 53,612
Charged during the period 66,121 21,214 99,692 2,308 1,865,335
Deletions -
As at 31 March 2018 2,24,932 92,385 4,01,337 5,293 7,23,947
Net block
As at 1 Aprit 2016 5,79,209 1,62,002 3,98,574 6,988 11,46,773
As at 31 March 2017 4,20,398 90,831 3,21,548 22,664 8,535,441
Asat 31 March 2018 4,185,677 69,617 2,29,915 20,356 7,35,565
*Cost as at April 1, 2016 is calenlated as shown below:
! Furniture & Equipment & Computer - Electrical

Particulars Fixtures qFacilities Iardware Installation Total
Gross block 13,78,465 607674 32,66,674 10,592
Accumylated depreciation {7,99,256) {4,45,672) (28,68,100) (3,604)
Deemcd Cost as at 1 April 2016 5,79,209 1,62,002 3,98,574 6,988
Note:
Since the company has ehanged its estimate of depreciation on property, plant and equipments from financial year 17-18,
impact of change is estimate is given below:
Particulars Amount in ¥
Depreciation as per written down value 2,91,340
Depreciation as per Straight Line Method 1,89,335
Profit of eurrent financial year {2017-2018} increased by 1,02,005
Intangible assets

{Amount in T)
Particulars Computer Total

Software

Gross block
Asatl April 2016 70,82,774 70,82,774
Additions 36,964 36,964
Deletions -
As at 31 March 2017 - - 71,19,738 71,19,738
Additions 10,86,750 10,86,750
Deletions -
As at 31 March 2018 - - 82,006,488 82,006,488
Accumulated depreciation
Asat | April 2016 37,24258 37,24,258
Amortised during the period 10,66,603 10,66,603
Deletions -
As at 1 March 2017 - - 47,590,861 47,990,861
Amortised dnring the period 10,88,932.00 10,588,932
Deletions -
As at 31 March 2018 - - 58,79,793 58,79,793
Net block
As at [ April 2016 - - 33,358,516 33,58,516
As at 31 March 2017 - - 23,28,877 23,28,877
As at 31 March 208 - - 23,26,695 23,26,695
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5.

Financial Assets

S5A. Trade receivables

Particulars

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Partieulars Asat As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 20147 LApril 2016
Trade receivables
Secured. considered good . _ _
Unsecured, considered good 1,15,493 91,425 5,57.250
Doubtful - - .
_1,15493 91,425 5.57,250
Qther receivables
Unsecured, considered good . . .
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Secured, considered good . . .
Unsecured, considered good - R _
Doubtful - - -
Nct Trade receivables
Secured, considered good . . _
Lnsecured, considered good 1,015,493 91,425 5,57.250
Doubtful - - -
1,15.493 91,425 5.57.250
Current 1,15,493 01,425 5,57,250
Non-Current - - -
. Loans
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2018 3! March 2017 1 April 2016
Security deposits - Non Current 1,29,270 81,814 1,935,808
Security deposits - Current - 43,754 .
Loan o related parties (refer note 'a' below) . _ N
Advances recoverable in eash or kind . _ .
Employee Advances - 5.000 6,000
Total Loans aud Advances 1,29,270 1,32,568 2,01,808
Current - 50,754 6,000
Non-Current 1,29,270 81,814 1,95,808
. Cash and cash cquivalents
As at As at As at

1 April 2016

Balances with banks

- In current aecounts 19,54,312 20.31,578 23,79,819

- Empoyees Group Gratuity Fund Alc - 4,873 4,873
Cash in hand 4,428 3,533 19,955
Total Cash and cash equivalents 19,58,740 20.39,984 24,04,646
Current 19,58,740 20,39,954 24,04,646
Non-Current - - -

. Other Financial Assets
As at As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

1 April 2016

Gratuity Fund
Total other financial assets

Current
Non-Current

92,793 1,15,254 1,67,647
92,793 1,15.254 1,67.647
92,793 1,15,254 1,67,647
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Inventories
Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Raw materials .

Finished Goods
Total Cash and cash equivalents

Current
Non-Current

Other Assets
. Prepaid expenses
. Asat As at Asat
Particul
articurars 31 March 201831 March 2017 1 April 2016
Prepaid expenses (Non current) 20,012 24271 46,112
Prepaid expenses (Current} 42,133 93,211 25828
Total Prepaid expenses 62,145 1,17,482 71,940
Qther assets
Particulars As at As at As at
a 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Income tax recoverable (Short Term) 3.07,396 - 2,098,670
Income tax recoverable {Long Term} - 76,359 1,98,148
MAT Credit Entitlement : Assessment Year 2015-16 & 2016-17 6,13,325 6,13,325 541,914
Total Other assets 920,721 0.89,684 9.49,732
Current 3,49,529 93,211 2,35,498
Non-Current 6,33,337 7,13,955 7,586,174
Deferred taxes
As at As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

1 April 2016

Items leading to creation of deferred tax assefs

Fixed assets: impact of differences between tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged in

the financial statements
Ind AS Adjustments
Total deferrcd tax assets

Items leadiug to creation of deferred tax liabilities

Fixed assets: impact of differcnces between tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged in

the financial statements

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss account in the current year but

allowed for tax purposcs on payment basis in subsequent years
Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

1,24.77] 1,06,534 -
1,24,771 1.06,534 -
3,84,200 4,17,000 3,46,100
3,84,200 4,17,000 5.46,100
(2,59,429) {3.10,466) (5,46,100)
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. Share Capitai

Authorised Share Capital

Particulars No, of shares Amount
As at1 April 2016 5,000 5,00,000
Increase/{ Decrease) during the year
As at 31 March 2017 5,000 5,00,000
Increase/{ Decrease) during the year
As at31 March 2018 5,000 5,00,000

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of X [00 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company
declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend propesed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. No dividend has been propesed by the Board of Directors during the year ended 31 March 2018 (31 March 201 7: Nil).

Iy the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution ofall
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Issued, subscribed and fully paid equity capital (Equity shares of ¥ 100 each)

Particulars No. of shares Amount
AtT April 2016 5,000 5,00,000
Changes during the period
Asat31 March 2017 5,000 5,00,000
Changes during the period
Asat 31 March 2018 5,000 5,00,000

c. Shares held by holding company and their subsidiaries/ associates
Out of equity shares issucd by the company, shares held by its holding company, ullimate halding company and their subsidiaries/ associates are as follow-
Particulars Asat As at
e 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Chhaya Prakashani Pvi. Ltd. 10).00% 100 0%
(0.85% by Dinesh Kumar Thunjhunwala as Nomince)
d, Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:
N f Shareholders As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017
ame o Shareholde No of Shares % of holding  No of Shares % of holding
Chhaya Prakashani Pvt. Ltd. 5,000 100.00% 5,000 100.00%
(500 shares held by Himanshu Gupta as nominee)
<10, Other eguity
Retaines Earnings
As at 1 April 2016 - 8,77,779
Changes during the period - 14.68,80%
As at 31 March 2017 23,46,588 23,446,588
Changes during the period {7,16,462) (7,16,462)
Asat31 March 2018 16,30,126 16,30,126
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Trade payables

Particulars

As at
31 Mareh 2018

As at
31 March 2017

As at
1 April 2016

Non-Current
Trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Current
Trade payables of miero enterprises and small enterprises

20,57,347

15,26,357

53,72,332

Trade payables of related entities
Trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises . - -
Totzl Trade payables 20,57,347 15,26,337 53,72,332
Current 20,57,347 15,26,357 53,72,332
Non corrent - - -
Provisions

As at Asat As at

Particulars

31 March 2018

31 Mareh 2017

1 Aprit 2016

Provision for gratuity (Non current)
Provision for gratuity (Current)
Provision for Income Tax

Provision for Audit Fces 1,29 804 - -
Total Provisions 1,29,800 - -
Curreat 1,29,300 - -
Non current . - .
Other liabilities

. As at As at As at

ticul
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017__1 April 2016
Statutory dues 1,65,228 1,80,158 1,38,140
Advance from customers 15,99.492 15,07,145 14,23.961
Other payables - - .
Total Other liabilities 17,64,720 16,87,303 15,62,101
Current 17,64,720 16,387,303 15,62,101

Non currenf
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14. Revenue From Operations

{(Amount in I)

Particuliars

For the period ended
31 March 2018

For the period ended
31 March 2017

Sate of prodncis
Finished goods
Less: Turnover diseount

Sale of services

Other operating revenue

Scrap sales

Total revenue from operations

Detail of sale of services

Content development charges
Royalty imeoine

15. Other Incomes

—_
i
—

Finance Income

Interest income -

- On seeurity deposit (noticnal income)
- On income tax refund

Total finance income

16. Cost of Raw Material Consumed

1,53,70.079 2,05,8! 034
1,53,70,079 2,05,81,034
1,53,70,079 2,05,81,034
1,53,70,079 2,05,81,034
11,706 20,946
3,815 8,922
15,521 29,868

_(Amount in I)

Particulars

For the period ended
31 March 2018

For the period endecd
31 March 2047

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Add : Purchases during the year

Less : Inventories at the end of the year

Details of raw material purchased
Paper

17. Publication Expenses

1,06,654

1,06,654

106,654

1,06,654

1,06,654

(Amountin I)

Particulars

For the period ended
31 March 201§

For the period ended
31 March 2017

Printing and binding charges*
Royalty expenses

Power & fuel

Other publishing expenses**
‘Tetal publication expenses

*Details of Printing and binding charges
Printing Charges

Book Binding Charges

Composing Charges

Larmunation Charges

**Details of other publishing expenses
Cover Designing Charges

Contract Job

Editing Charges

Manuscript Writing

(hers

91,980 1,42,038
91,988 1,42,038
91,980 1,42.038
91,980 1,42,038
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20.

21.

Employee Benefits Expenses

{Amount in ¥)

Particulars

For the period ended
31 March 2018

For the period ended
31 March 2017

Salaries, wages and bonus
Directors' Remuneration
Manpower Expenses

Contribution to provident and other funds

Gratuity expense
Staff welfare expenses
Total employee benefits expenses

Depreciation aud Amortisation Expneses

85,16,835 92,24,477
5,23,600 4,356,000
24,64.,096 40,96,125
7.82215 733,677
2,03,717 1,64.033
37,605 49313
1,26,28,068 1.47,23,627

{Amount in ¥)

Particulars

For the period ended
31 March 2018

For the period ended
31 March 2017

Depreciation of property, plant & euipement

Amortisation of intangible assets

Total depreciation and amortisation expneses

Other Expenses

1,89.335 5.34612
10.88,532 10,66,603
12,78,267 16,01,215

(Amountin Ty

Particulars

For the period ended
3t March 2018

For the period ended
31 March 2017

Communication cost
Rent
Rates and taxes
Filling fee
[nsurance
Travelling & Conveyance
Electricity Expenses
Repairs and maintenance -
-Buildings
-Others
Printing and stationery
Legal and professional fee
Payment to auditor (refer details below)
Office Expenses
Software Maintaince
Miscellaneous expenses
Total other expenses

Payment to auditor

37,859 47473
8,72.019 9,58,199
3,600 4947
26,372 10,903
11,158 9,965
459211 4,35,052
85,157 3,06,744
51,887 6,153
1,35.400 .
1,29,800 146,626
139,146 .
143,245 ;
8,172 1,97,760
21,13,026 21,23,322

For the period ended

For the period ended

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

As auditor

- For Statutory Audit 94,400 57,500

- For Internal Audit - -

- For Tax Audit 35,400 28,750

- For Other Services - 60,376
1,29,500 1,46,626

Cemponents of Other Comprcheusive Income (OCT)

The disaggregation of changes in other comprehensive income by each type of equity is shown below:

During the year ended 31st March 2018

Particulars Retained earnings Total

Re-measurment gains/{losses) on defined benefit plans (41,759) (41,759)

Tax impaet on re-measuremnent gains/{lesses) en defined benefit plans 12,473 12,473
{29,286} {29,286)

During the year cnded 31st March 2017

Particulars Retazined earnings Total

Re-measurment gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (2.06,853) (2,06,853)

Tax impact on re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 61,787 61,787

(1,45,066) (1.45,066)




22. Earunings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts ar¢ calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equtly shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares Into equity shares

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

For the period ended For the period ended

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company (6,87,177) 16.13,875
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing Earming per Share 5,000 5,000
(Basic & Diluted)

Basic EPS (137 323
Diluted DPS (137} 323
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23, Gratuity and other post- employment benefits plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratwty plan. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has eompleted atleast five years ol service gets a gratuity on departure
at 15 days of last drawn salary for each comiplered year of service or part thereof in excess of six months subject to a maximum of Rs. 1,000,000 The scheme is

fnnded wilh an msurance company m the form of qualifying insurance palicy.

The following tables summarize the components of net bencfit cxpense recognised in the profit and loss account and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for

Gratuity Plan.

Statement of Profit & Loss account
Nel employee benefit expense recognised in employee Cost:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Current Service cost 1,96,728 164,993
Interest cosl on defined obligation 71,921 44,780
Expected return on pian assets (80,392} (38.191)
Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture (Reler note 'a’ below) . -
1,88,257 1,851,582

Amgeunt recognised in_ Other Comprehensive Income:

Far the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
_ March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Actuarial {gains) / losses on obligatton 48,846 2,08,998
Actuanal gains / (losses) on assets (8373) 2,145
57,219 2,06,853

Balance sheet
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit gbligation are as follows:

For the year ended

For the year ¢ended

Particulars
Mareh 31, 2018 March 31,2017

Opcning defined benefil obligation 9,78,517 559,746
Current s¢rvice cosl 1,96,728 1,64993
luterest cos| 71,921 44,780
Benefits paid - -
Actuarial {gains) / losses on obligation 48,846 2,08,998
Closing defined benefit obligation 12,96,012 9,738,517
Current Portion 32443 19,658

12,63,569 9,58,859

Non - Current Portion

Changes in the Lair value of plan assets are as follows:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31,2018 March 31, 2017

Opening fair value of plan assets 10,93,771 7,27,393
Expected refurn 80,392 58,191
Contributions by employer 2,23,015 3,06,042
Benefits paid . -

Actuarial gain/(loss) (3,373) 2,143
Closing fair value of plane assets 13,88,805 10,93,771

The Company expects to contribute Rs. xxxxxx/- 1o gratuity in this vear (31 March 2017 Rs 551,922)

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of lotal plan assets are as follows;

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2013

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

[nvestments with msurer

100%

The economie and demographic assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the company’s plans are shown below;

100%

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Discount rate 1.70% 7.35%
Expected rate of refurn on asscts 7.70% 7.35%
Expected rate of salary increase 7.00% 6.50%
Retiremen| Age (In vears) 58 58
Employee umover -

- Ape upto 30 years :

- Ape 31 - 44 years

- Ape above 44 years -

[00.00% 100 00%

Mortality Rate

The estimates of futare salary increases, considered in actuarial valualion, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply

and demand in the employment market

The overall cxpected ratc of return on asseis is determined based un the market priges prevailiug on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to

be settled
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The impact of sensitivity analysis due to changes in the significant acturial assumptions on the defined benefit obligations is given in below table;

Particulars Change in For the yenr ended  For the vear ended
assumptions March 31,2018 Mareh 31, 2017

Driscount rate + 1% 11,52,737 B,69,589

- 1% 14,64,244 11,06 610

Expected rate of salary increase + 1% 14,67,145 11,04,028

- 1% 11,47,921 8,69,680

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates (he impact en defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes m
key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The following paymenis are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:
{Valued on Undiscounted Basis)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2018 Mareh 31, 2017

Vear | 32,443 19,658
Year 2 23,105 1,65,523
Year 3 23,105 1,685,523
Year 4 23,105 1,65,523
Year 23,105 (,65,523
Year6 1o 10 5,20 982 174,328




Publishing Services Pvi, Lid,
CIN: UI2221WB2004PTC09963%

Notes to £ iaf sta

for the period ended March 31, 2013

24. Related party disclosare

h.

Namies of related parties and related party velationship

Related parties where conirof exisis

Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Whelly Owned Subsidiary Compames

Related parties with whom transaciions have taken place during the year

Enterprises under same centro!

Key management persennet

Related party iransactions

S Chand and Compauy Limiled (Formerly 5 Chand amidl Company Privaie Limited)
Zurasir Publishinz House Private Limited

Chhayr Prakashani Private Limiled

Indian Progressive Puhlishing Co. Private Limited

NIL

Chhaya Prakashani Private Limired

Indian Progressive Publishing Co. Private Limited

Debabrata Maity
Saurabh Minal
Utiam Dutta

(This space has been intennonally ieft hlank)

The following table pravides the total amount of transactions that have been entered inta with related parties dnring the year

Enterprises over which Key
Managemeni Peryonnel and their

Key Manageweni

Nature of Transactions Period Enterprises where Control exists y . Pervonnel & their Tatal
relatives are ahle to exercise -
L . refalives
signifecant influence
INCOME
Sales
Chhaya Prakasham Private Limded 31 March 2018 1,52,57.951 - - 1,52,57951
Chhaya Prakashani Private Limired 31 March 2017 2,02,50,991 - - 2,02,50,993
Indian Progressive Publishing Co Private Linuted 31 March 2018 1,12,128 - - 112,128
Indiait Progressive Publishug Co Private Limited 31 March 2017 2,35.551 - - 2,353,551
Easy Note Stationery Private Luntied 31 March 2018 - - - .
31 March 2017 94,450 - 94,490
Balances ousstanding at the Year end
Manmgsmens Personne s i | 7 Munagement
Nature of Transactions Period Enterprises where Conirel exists g‘ . Personnel & their Total
relatives are nbke to exereise -
- - relatives
sipaificant influgnce
Trade payables
Chhaya Prakashani Pnivate Limited 31 March 2018 20,57,347 - - 10,57.347
31 March 2017 15,26,357 - - 15,26,357
i Apn! 2016 53,72,332 - §3.72,532
Indizn Progressive Publishing Co Private Lizmited 31 March 2018 - - -
31 March 2017 - - - -
| Apnl 2016 - - - -
Trade Receivables -
Indian Progressive Publishing Co Private Limited J1 March 2018 1,15,493 115,593
31 March 2017 65,392 63,392
| April 2016 557,250 557,250
Easy Note Stationery Private Limired 3 March 2018 - . R
31 March 2017 - 26,033 26,033
| Aprif 2016 - - -

e
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23, Cnpital & other commitments
% The Company doestiot have any such Capital commitments 1o be meel
kS

26, Details of dues 10 micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

* Particulars

March 31,2018

March 31,2017

April 1,2016

% The principal amount and the interest due thereon (1o be shown separately) remaining unpaid 1o any supplier as at the end of
2ach accounimg year

.- Prncipal amount due to micro and smail enterprises

t . interest due an above

£ % The amount of jnlerest paid by the buyer 1n terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the
paymenl made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounling year

’ The amount of interest diie and payable for the period of delay in inaking payment (which have been paid but beyond the
. appomied day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006

The amount of further interest remaming due and payable even tn the suceeeding vears, untul such date when Lhe interest dues
., as above are zetually pard to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deduelibie expenditure under section 23
ol the MSMED Act 2006

2 Segment reporting

The Company has only one reportable business segment, which 1s publishing of hodks and operales in a single business segment based on1 Lhe nature of the services, the risk and retnms, the organizaton
.+ " struclure and the intemal [inaneial reporting systems Aecordingly, the amounts appearing in she financial statements relate to the Company’s single business segmen

28, Conljngent liabilities

“The company does nol have any contingent liability as at 31st March 2018 (3]st Mareh 2017 Nul, |5t April 2016 Nil}

£ ' Corporate Social Responsibitity (CSR

_The Compaay doesnol fall nnder See 135(1} of Compames Act 2013 henee there is no liability for Corporate Social Responsibelity on the part o[ the company as per Companm:es Act 2013,

P

. Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) keld and transacted during the period 08 November 2016 to 30 December 2015 is as provided in the lable below:

: Particulars SBNs Other notes Total
Closing balance as ut 8 November 2016 NA NA NA
* Transaetions between ¢ November 2056 o 3¢ Decemher 2016
" Add wilhdrawal from bank aceounts NA NA NA
Add recepts for permilled transaetions NA NA NA
tLess. paid for permitted transaclions NA NA NA
NA NA NA

Less. depasited in bank aecounts

Closing balance as at 30 December 2016
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31. Financial Instruments:- Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables . The main purpose of these finaneial liabilities is to finance the
* Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include investments in equity shares and government securities, advances to related party, trade and

other receivables, security deposits, cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations.

: The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks and advises on

financial risks aud the appropriate financial risk governance framewark for the Company. The board provides assurance to the sharehlders that the Company’s financial
risk activities arc governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measnred and managed in accordance with the Company’s
policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

7 * Market Risk
Markct risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

#7"3 Market risk comprises three types of risk:-
a.) Interest rate risk,
- b.) currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and

" ¢.) commodity risk.
.. Financial instruments aifected by market risk includc loans and borrowings, investments, deposits, advances and derivative financial instruments.

. The sensitivity analyses in the following scctions refate to the position as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.

The sensitivity analyscs have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of floating to fixed interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the
* proportiou of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant in place at 31 March 2018.

: 1 The analyses exclude the impacl of movements in market variables on: the carrving valucs of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions. The sensitivity of
" the rclevant profit or loss item is the eifect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.

a. Interest rate risk.
. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s

exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primatily to thc Company’s long-term debt obligations with fixcd interest rates.

B. Credit Risk
- 'Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss, The

Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk fron: its operating activities (primarily trade receivables), including deposits with banks and
.+ financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

.+ The Ageining analysis of trade receivables (net) as of the reporting date is as follows:

_Age Bracket More than 1 year Less than | year Total
“-"Asat 1 April 2016 - 5,57,250 5,57,250
As at 31 March 2017 - 91,425 91.425

- 1,15,493 1,15,493

. Asat 31 March 2018

_ Liquidity Risk
) Liquidity risk is the risk that the company wilt encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liablities that are setteled by
_ deleivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of finding and flexibility through the
" use of bank overdrafts, and bank loans. The copmany's approach to managiug liquidity to ensure , as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity
{0 meet its liability when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditious, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage (o the
- Company's reputation. The Company closely monitars its liquidity pesition and deploys a robust cash management system. The Company manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate rcserves, borrowing liabilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, profile of financial
-+ assets and labilities. It maintain adequate sources of financancing including loans from banks at an optimised cost.
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Fair value of linancial assets and liabilities

The Carrying values of finaneial instruments by categories is as under:

Particni 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
articulars Amortized Cost___FVIPL ___FVIOCI Amwrtized Cost____FVIPL FVTOCI Amortized Cost___FYTPL__FVTOCH
Assels
Non eurrent linancial assets
- Loans - 129,270 - - 31,814 - 120623 (73,189 -
-Gratuny Fund G2.793 - - 1,15,254 - - 1,67.647 - -
Current linancial assels
- Investinents - - - - - - - - -
- Trade receivables 1,15.49) - - 91,425 - - 557,250 - -
- Loans - - - 5,000 45,754 - 6,000 - -
. « Cash and cash equivalents 19,58,740 - - 20,39.984 - - 24,04,646 - -
. Current Financial liubilities
- Trade payabtes 20,57,347 - - 15,26,357 - - §3,72,332 - -

i.} The fair values of trade rcceivables, cash and cash equivalents, ciher current financial assets, trade payable and other current financial hiabilities are considered Io be same as their carrying values

= - due ro lheir short tenm naure.

1ii.) The Company classifies all its financaal assets and finanetal liabilitics to be measured al amortised cosl. Hence the company has not classified its financial mstruments inlo three levels of fair valie

neasnrnents hierarchy in accordance with ihe relevaot [ndian Accounting Standard.
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March 2017, the Company prepared its financial statlements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Previous GAAP). Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statcments which comply with Ind AS applicable for
periods cnding on 31 March 2018, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2017, as described in the summary of significant accounting

' .Optional Exemptions Applied:
Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospeclive application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following exemptions.

Deemed cost of Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter, where there is no change in functional currency, to clect lo continue wilh (he carrying value for all of its property, ptanl and cquipment as

% recognised in the financial statements as at the date of Iransition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making
necessary adjustments for de.commissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 [ntangible Assets.

. Accordingly, the company has elected to measure all of ils property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value.

. ilnvestments in subsidiaries*
The Company does not have any Investments in any subsidiaries
ti.) Reconciliations
Following reconciliations along with foot notes for the GAAP adjustments is inserted:
! . Reconciliation of equity as at | April 2016 (the date of transition to Ind AS) (Annexure I)
- Reconeiliation of equity as a1 31 March 2017 (Annexure 1la}
P Reconciliation of profit and loss for year ended 31 March 2017 (Annexure 11b)
34 Standard issued but effective from 01.04.2018
¢ YIND AS 115 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
Ind AS 115 was notified on 28 March 2018 and establishes a five-step model Lo account for revenue arising from contracts with cuslomers. Under Ind AS 15, revenue is recognised at
* ;an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entily expects lo be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. Either & full retrospective application or a modified retrospective application is
" *required for annual periods beginning on or after | April 2018. The Company will adopt the new standard on the required efective date using the modified retrospeetive method. The
Company has established an iinplementalion team lo implement
. Ind AS 115 related to the recognition of revenue from conlracts with customers and it conlinues to evaluate the changes lo accounting syslem and processes, and additional disclosure
requiremeuls that may be necessary. A retiable estimate of the quantitative impact of Ind AS 115 on the financial statemenls will only be possible once the implementation project has

been eompleled.”

b, o
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Annexure I - Reconeiliation ol equity as at 1 April 2016 (the date of transition to ind AS)

{Amount in ¥)

Particuiars indian GAAP*  Ind AS Adj Ind AS
Assels

Non-enrrent asscts

Property, plant and equipment [1,46,772 - 11,46,772
Intangible assels 33,58,516 33,58,516
Financial assets

- Loans 2,70,993 (75,185) 1,95,808
- Other financial assets 1,67,647 - 1,67,647
Other non-current assets 1,98.148 46, E12 2,44.260
Deferred tax assets {net) (5,46,100) - {5,46,1003%
Total non-eurrent assets 45,95,976 {29,073) 45,66,903
Current assets

[nventories - - -
Financial assets

- Trade receivables 5,57,250 - 5,572,250
- Loans 6,000 - 6,000
- Cash and ¢ash equivalents 24,04,646 - 24,04,646
« QOther financial assets -
Other current assels 7.51,584 25828 777412
Total eurrent assets 37,19,480 25,828 37.45,308
Total assets 83,15,456 {3,245} 83,12.211
Equity and liabilities

Equity

Equity share capital 5,00,000 - 5,00,000
Other equity

- Retained eamnings 881,023 (3.245) 877,778
Total equity 13,81,023 (3,245) 13,77,778
Current liabitities

Finaneial liabilities

- Borrowings - - -

- Trade payables 53,72,332 - 53.72,332
- Other finaneial liabilities - - -
Provisions - - -
Other current liabilities 15,62,101 - 15,62.101
Total current liabilities 69,34,433 - 69,34,433
Total equity and liabilities 83,15,456 (3,245) 83,12,211

(*indian Gaap mmmbers have been regrouped to conform to classifications as per Ind AS)
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Annexure 1la - Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2017

(Amount in )

Particulars Indian GAAP*  Ind AS Adj Ind AS
Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 8,355,440 - 8,55,440
Intangible assets 23.28.877 - 23.28.877
Financial assets -

- Loans 1,70,000 (88,186) 81,814
- Other financial assels 1,67,047 (52,393 1,15,254
Other non-current assets 689,685 24,270 7.13,955
Deferred tax assets (net} (4.17.000) 1,06,534 (3.10.466)
Total non-current assets 37,994,649 (9,775) 37.84,873
Current assets

Inventories - - -
Financial assets -

- Trade receivables 91,425 - 91,425
- Loans 5,000 45,754 50,754
- Cash and cash equivalents 20,319,984 - 20,39.984
Other current assets 78,644 14,567 931211
Total current assets 22,15,053 60,321 22,75,374
Toral assets 60,09,702 50,546  60,60,247
Equity and liabilities

Equity

Equity share capital 5,00,000 - 5,060,000
Other equity

- Retained eamnings 22,96,042 50,545 23,46,587
- Other reserves - -
Total equity 27.96,042 50,548 28,46,587
Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

- Borrowings - - -
- Trade payables 15,26,357 - 15,26,357
- Other financial liabilities .
Provisions -
Other current liabilities 16,87.303 - 16,87.303
Total eurrent liabilities 32,13.660 - 32,13,660
Total equity and liabilities 60,092,702 50,545 60,60,247

(*Indian Gaap numbers have been regrouped to confornt to classifications as per ind AS)
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Annexure ITb - Reconciliation of profit and loss for year ended 31 March 2017

Particvlars Fool notes Indian GAAP ind AS Adj Ind AS
} Revenue from Cperations 2,05.81,034 - 2.05.81,034
il Other Income 8,922 20,950 29.868
[T Totkal Tacome (1+11) 2,05,89,956 20,950 2,06,10,902
1¥ Expenses
Cost of raw malerials and components consumed 1,06,654 - 1,06,654
Purchase of traded books - “ .
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods and work in progress - . R
Publication expenses 1.42,038 - 1,42,038
Employee benefits expense 1.48,78,087 (1,54,460) 1.47.23.627
Selling and distribution expenses - - .
Finance cost - - B
Depreciation and amortisation expense 16,01,215 - 16,001,215
Other expenses 21,02,523 21,299 21,23,822
Totsal expenses 1,88,30,517 (1,33,161) 1,86,97,356
Y Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (I-II) 17,59,439 1,54,111 19,13,546
V1 Exceptional itein - - -
VII Profit/{loss) beflore tax 17,59,439 1,54,111 19,13,546
VIII Tax expense:
Current tax 3,35,261 - 1,35,261
[ncome tax adjustinent related to earlier years 1,38,256 - 1,38,256
Deferred 1ax (credit) charge (1,29,100}% (44,747) {1,73,847)
Tatal tax expenses 344,417 {44,747y 2,99,670
1X Profit (Loss) for the period 14,15,022 1,98,858 16,13,876
X Other Comprehensive Ineome
- Ttems that wil! not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans - (2.06,853) (2,06,853)
Tax impact on re-ineasurement gains/(losses) on defimed benefit plans - 61,787 61,787
X1 Total Comprehensive Ineome for the period (V + ¥T) 14,15,022 53,792 14,68,810

Footnoies to the reconciliation of equity as at April 1, 2016 and March 31, 2017 and profit or loss for the year ended March 3, 2017 are as below:-

1.} [nvestments

Under previous GAAP, currens investmenls were ineasured at lower of Cost or fair value. Under Ind AS these financials assets are classiffied as FYTPL and 1he
changes in fair value are recognised in slalement of profit and loss. Cn the transilion date, these financial assets have been measured at Lheir fair value which is
higher than its cost as per previons GAAP, resultig in an increase/decrease in earrying value of the inveslments with corresponding increase/decrease being

recognised in equity.

2.) Investmenis in subsiadiaries - deemed cost exemption

Under previous GAAP, investinents in subsidianies were ineasured al cost. Under Ind AS, the Compaay has elected the option of fair value investments in certain

subsidiaries basis the requirmeuts of Ind AS 101, First Time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards for deriving the carrying value of Lhese investments (‘deemed

cost)

1) Non Current Financial assets/ Financial liabilities

Under previous GAAP, certain non-current fiuancial assets/ liabilities which were measured at cost/ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the

obligaliion, at the balance sheet date without consadering the effect of discounting where as these are measured at the present value on the balance sheet date under
Ind AS. Accordingly the Company has recognised the adjusunents to (e respective carrying amount and the consequent unpact on finance cost/ finauce income due
to inwinding of the discounting impact. The correspondiug impact on the date of transition has beeu recognised in equity.

4,} Remeosurment differences

Under previous GAAP, there was no concept of other compreheusive income and hence, previous GAAP profit is reconciled to fotal comprehensive income as per
Ind AS. Under previous GAAP, the remeasurments of the net defined benefit liability were recognised in the stalement of profit and loss however under [nd AS,

said renieasurment differeuces net of the related tax impaet are recognised in the other comprehensive iucome.

5.} Deffered Tax

Under Ind AS, the Coinpany has recogmised the consequeatial tax nplieations on the impact on account of adjustiments explained above.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of lhe financial statements.
As per owr report of 2ven date
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